
 
 

 
 
 
14 February 2020 
 
 
To: Councillors Mrs Callow JP, Collett, Critchley, Farrell, Hunter, Hutton, D Scott, R Scott and 

Wilshaw  
 

The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 25 February 2020 at 6.00 pm (or on the rising of the Licensing 
Committee meeting whichever is later) 

in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool 
 

A G E N D A 
 

ADMISSION OF THE PUBLIC TO COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

The Head of Democratic Governance has marked with an asterisk (*) those items where the 
Committee may need to consider whether the public should be excluded from the meeting as 

the items are likely to disclose exempt information. 
The nature of the exempt information is shown in brackets after the item. 

 
This information is provided for the purpose of this meeting only and must be securely 

destroyed immediately after the meeting. 
 
 

 1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:  
 
(1) the type of interest concerned either a 
 

(a) personal interest 
(b) prejudicial interest  
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) 

 
and 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned 
 
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 

Public Document Pack



the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 
 

 2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 21 JANUARY 2020  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

  To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 21 January 2020 as a true and 
correct record. 

 
* 3  PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE DRIVER LICENCES  (Pages 7 - 38) 

 
  (This item contains personal information regarding applicants and licence holders which 

is exempt from publication by virtue of Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972) 

 
* 4  PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE  (Pages 39 - 58) 

 
  (This item contains personal information regarding a licence holder which is exempt 

from publication by virtue of Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972) 

 
 5  POLICY ON THE USE OF THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF TAXI LICENCE REVOCATIONS AND 

REFUSALS (NR3)  (Pages 59 - 74) 
 

  To consider proposed Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence 
Revocations and Refusals for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers. 

 
 6  DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 
  To note the date of the next scheduled meeting as 17 March  2020 in Committee 

Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool. 
 

 

Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Chris Williams, Democratic Governance 
Adviser, Tel: (01253) 477153, e-mail chris.williams@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 
2020 

 
 

 
Present:  
 
Councillor Hutton (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors 
 
Mrs Callow JP 
Collett 

Critchley 
Farrell 

Hunter 
R Scott 

Wilshaw 

 
In Attendance:  
 
Mrs Sharon Davies, Principal Licensing Solicitor 
Mr Chris Williams, Democratic Services Adviser 
 
 
1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion. 
 
2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 17 DECEMBER 2019 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the minutes of the last meeting held on 17 December 
2019. 
 
Resolved: 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 December be approved and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 
 
3 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
Resolved: That under Section 100 (A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting during consideration of the whole item, including the 
decisions referred to at agenda items 3 and 4. 
 
4 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE DRIVER'S LICENCES 
 
The Sub-Committee was informed of applicants and Licence Holders who had given 
sufficient cause for concern as to be referred for consideration. 
 
Members discussed the applications and referrals as appropriate.  
   

(i) S.S. (New Applicant)  
 
Mr Ratcliffe, Licensing Enforcement Officer was in attendance and presented the case on 
behalf of the authority. It was reported that the applicant had two previous convictions 
for drink driving which gave cause for concern to the Licensing Service. 
 
The applicant was in attendance with his brother and made representations to the Sub-Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 
2020 

 
 

Committee. SS explained that he regretted the offences outlined in the report and 
suggested that he had made some poor lifestyle choices in the past. He added that he 
wished to put those times behind him and was now looking for greater stability and 
flexibility in his work to accommodate his family life. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the seriousness and relevance of the driving offences 
committed by SS but accepted on balance that he had made positive changes to his life 
and deserved to be given a chance given the time that had elapsed since the most recent 
offence.  
 
Resolved: 
To grant the Private Hire Driver’s Licence with the addition of a Severe Warning Letter in 
relation to future conduct indicating that in the event the applicant was brought before 
the Sub-Committee again in the future, suspension or revocation of the Licence would be 
the likely outcome. 
 

(ii) C.A. (New Applicant) 
 
The applicant was in attendance and in response to the authority case which listed 
numerous criminal convictions that included violent offences and motoring convictions, 
CA produced a letter in support of his application and explained that since those 
convictions, his circumstances had changed and he now had a family and ran a business 
with his wife. With regards to the offences, the applicant regretted mistakes he had made 
in younger life and assured Members that his poor choices were a result of youth and 
ignorance. 
 
The Sub-Committee believed that on balance that whilst the offences gave cause for 
concern, they were historic and the applicant had clearly made positive steps to change 
his life for the better and had largely mitigated his earlier mistakes. 
 
Resolved: 
To grant the Private Hire Driver’s Licence with the addition of a Severe Warning Letter in 
relation to future conduct indicating that in the event the applicant was brought before 
the Sub-Committee again in the future, suspension or revocation of the Licence would be 
the likely outcome. 
 

(iii) M.R. (Existing Private Hire Driver) 
 
The Licence Holder was not in attendance and therefore made no representations to the 
Sub-Committee. In the absence of any contact from the driver, Members agreed to hear 
the case in his absence. 
 
Mr Ratcliffe informed the Sub-Committee that as a licensed driver, MR was required to 
submit to a Group Two Medical once every five years given his age. In addition, the driver 
had failed to attend certain required training sessions and the Licensing Service had been 
unable to make contact with him. 
 
Given the lack of cooperation and failure to attend required medical and training 
appointments, the Sub-Committee agreed that the driver appeared not to be taking his Page 2



MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 
2020 

 
 

responsibilities seriously enough. In light of this, Members reasoned that the Licence 
ought to be suspended until such time as all outstanding requirements had been satisfied 
and should those requirements not be met after an extended length of time, the Licence 
would be reviewed again by the Sub-Committee in the future. 
 
Resolved: 
To suspend the Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Licence for MR until all outstanding medical 
and training requirements had been completed. 
 

(iv) J.L. (Existing Private Hire Driver) 
 
Mr Ratcliffe outlined the case on behalf of the authority. It was noted that the driver had 
been convicted of an offence for using a mobile phone whilst driving which he had also 
failed to declare to the Licensing Service until his renewal application almost two years 
after the date of the offence. 
 
JL was in attendance and claimed that in relation to the offence, he was operating a 
satnav at the time and not a mobile phone and was stationary at traffic lights. 
 
The Sub-Committee reasoned that perhaps there was some mitigation in the explanation 
provided by the driver regarding the offence and he had not given cause for concern 
previously. However, it was felt that JL should have notified the Licensing Service once he 
had been convicted rather than wait until his renewal application. 
 
Resolved: 
To issue a Severe Warning Letter in relation to future conduct indicating that in the event 
he was brought before the Sub-Committee again in the future, suspension or revocation 
of the Licence would be the likely outcome. 
 
Background papers: exempt 
 
5 HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCES 
 
The Sub-Committee was informed of Licence Holders who had given sufficient cause for 
concern as to be referred for consideration. 
 
Members discussed the referrals as appropriate.  
   

(i) A.O. (Existing Licence holder) 
 
Mr Ratcliffe presented the case on behalf of the authority. The vehicle belonging to AO 
had failed a routine pit test and numerous serious mechanical defects had been reported 
by technicians at the Central Vehicle Maintenance Unit at Layton Depot. Of the 18 faults 
identified, nine were judged to be MOT failures. Whilst the vehicle’s age meant that it fell 
just outside the Exceptional Quality Policy, it was still taken off the road immediately. 
 
The Licence Holder was in attendance and made representations to the Sub-Committee. 
He advised that he had since replaced the vehicle and suggested that at the time of the 
pit-test, he was surprised to find the faults discovered as he claimed to have taken the Page 3



MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 
2020 

 
 

vehicle to his mechanic shortly before the test date and they had failed to observe any of 
the faults. He suggested some of the faults, particularly those on the underside of the 
vehicle would have been impossible to spot without a ramp. AO presented a number of 
receipts that he claimed proved that preparatory work had been undertaken on the 
vehicle prior to testing. 
 
The Sub-Committee expressed serious concerns about the state of the vehicle as 
presented for a pit-test. They agreed that higher standards were demanded from the 
Licence Holder and his failure to accept much of the responsibility for the condition of the 
vehicle made the situation worse. In addition, some of the receipts presented appeared 
to lack authenticity. 
 
Ultimately, members were minded to take serious action against the Licence Holder who 
had failed to perform adequate maintenance on his vehicle and appeared to lack basic 
mechanical knowledge or be able to operate a simple maintenance schedule. 
 
Resolved: 

1. To suspend the Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence and Hackney Carriage vehicle 
Driver’s Licence for a period of two months to encourage future compliance and 
given the seriousness of the faults identified with the vehicle. 

2. To Impose the following conditions on the Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence: 
 

 All inspections must be recorded in writing and this written record must include a 
list of action taken as a result of the inspection. 

 The licence holder is to implement a vehicle safety inspection regime to be 
undertaken at a minimum of every two months by a qualified motor engineer. 
Such records to be kept for a period of 2 years. 

 Records of all servicing to be retained for 2 years, those servicing records to 
contain the date, vehicle registration number & mileage of the vehicle 

 All service/inspection records must be legible 

 All records to be produced to enforcement or police officers within 24 hours of the 
demand being made. 

 The licence holder must implement a procedure to ensure that drivers do a visual 
inspection of the licensed vehicle each time that they take charge of that vehicle 
and report any faults with it to the licence holder. 
 

(ii) P.H.S. (Existing Licence holder) 
 
The Licence Holder was in attendance and made representations to the Sub-Committee. 
In response to the authority’s case concerning serious defects found during a routine pit 
inspection of the Licence Holder’s vehicle, PHS claimed he was in hospital at the time of 
the pit test and therefore did not personally present the vehicle for testing. In addition, 
he produced documentation related to MOT tests taken subsequently but soon after the 
pit inspection where the vehicle appeared to pass. However, Members questioned 
whether the tests might have been performed on the vehicle after remedial works had 
already been carried out. The Licence Holder claimed that this had not been the case.  
 
It was impressed upon PHS that the pit test was more stringent than a standard MOT test 
and therefore not comparable, so that faults that would not result in an MOT failure Page 4



MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 
2020 

 
 

could constitute a pit-test failure.  
 
The Sub-Committee reasoned that the vehicle operated by the Licence Holder was 
presented in a condition that fell well below the standards it was subject to under the 
Exceptional Quality Policy. PHS seemed unwilling to accept the failings and lacked 
remorse. Furthermore, no regular maintenance schedule between the Licence holder and 
driver was in place. 
 
Resolved: 

1. To suspend the Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence and Hackney Carriage vehicle 
Driver’s Licence for a period of two months to encourage future compliance and 
given the seriousness of the faults identified with the vehicle. 

2. To impose the following conditions on the Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence: 
 

 All inspections must be recorded in writing and this written record must include a 
list of action taken as a result of the inspection. 

 The licence holder is to implement a vehicle safety inspection regime to be 
undertaken at a minimum of every two months by a qualified motor engineer. 
Such records to be kept for a period of 2 years. 

 Records of all servicing to be retained for 2 years, those servicing records to 
contain the date, vehicle registration number & mileage of the vehicle 

 All service/inspection records must be legible 

 All records to be produced to enforcement or police officers within 24 hours of the 
demand being made. 

 The licence holder must implement a procedure to ensure that drivers do a visual 
inspection of the licensed vehicle each time that they take charge of that vehicle 
and report any faults with it to the licence holder. 

(iii) S.F. (Existing Licence holder) 
 
Mr Ratcliffe outlined the authority’s case. During a routine vehicle stop performed by the 
Licensing Service and the Central Vehicle Maintenance Unit, the Licence Holder’s vehicle 
was found to have numerous faults, some of which should have been obvious upon 
casual inspection. 
 
The Licence holder was in attendance and suggested that some of the faults were not 
present when he got in the vehicle earlier that day. SF produced various receipts to 
evidence a regular maintenance schedule for the vehicle and added that he often had it 
checked at various mileage intervals. 
 
The Sub-Committee were concerned at the Licence Holder’s apparent lack of mechanical 
knowledge and some of the basic faults that had been discovered on the vehicle. 
 
Resolved: 
That the following conditions be imposed on the Private Hire Vehicle Licence: 
 
1. The vehicle must be inspected by a suitably qualified mechanic on fortnightly basis, the licence 
holder or their appointed representative must then inspect the vehicle on the alternate weeks. 
 
2. The vehicle is to be serviced every 5000 miles 
 Page 5



MINUTES OF PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 
2020 

 
 
3. Records of all servicing to be retained for 2 years 
 
4. Those records to be legible 
 
5. Those records to be produced to Enforcement or Police officers within 24 hours of the demand 
being made. 
 
Background papers: exempt 
 
6 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The date of the next scheduled meeting was noted as 25 February 2020. 
 
  
  
  
  
Chairman 
  
(The meeting ended at 8.20 pm) 
  
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: 
Chris Williams Democratic Governance Adviser 
Tel: (01253) 477153 
E-mail: chris.williams@blackpool.gov.uk 

Page 6



Report to: PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Relevant Officer: Lee Petrak, Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Date of Meeting  
 

25 February 2020 

 

PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE DRIVER LICENCES 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider an applicants and a licence holder who have been convicted of offences 
or who have otherwise given reasons for concern. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 The Sub-Committee will be requested to determine the applications and referral as 
appropriate. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

Licensed drivers can be responsible for transporting vulnerable passengers. It is 
important for the protection of the public that only fit and proper persons are 
licensed.  
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None, as the Sub-Committee is required to determine the applications and referral. 
 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 

across Blackpool” 
 
5.0 Background Information 

 
5.1 The Sub-Committee is asked to determine whether or not the applicants and licence 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 
 
5.2 

holder are fit and proper persons to hold Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Licences, in 
respect of the following cases: 
 
S.E.S (Existing), K.J.V (New), M.S.L (New), M.P.S (New) 
 
Details of offences or matters causing concern and any supporting documents are 
attached at Appendix 3(a). 
  

5.3 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? Yes 
 
5.4 List of Appendices: 

 
 

 Appendix 3(a) Details of cases (not for publication)  
 
6.0 Legal considerations: 

 
6.1 
 
 
6.2 

The Sub-Committee must be satisfied that the applicants and licence holder are fit 
and proper persons to be licensed. 
 
There is the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court. 

 
7.0 Human Resources considerations: 

 
7.1 None 
 
8.0 Equalities considerations: 

 
8.1 None 
 
9.0 Financial considerations: 

 
9.1 None 
 
10.0 Risk management considerations: 

 
10.1 None 
 
11.0 Ethical considerations: 

 
11.1 None 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 None 
 
13.0 Background papers: 

 
13.1 
 

None 

 
  

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Relevant Officer: Lee Petrak, Trading Standards and Licensing Manager  

Date of Meeting  
 

25 February 2020 

 

PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider whether or not the licence holder is a fit and proper person to hold a 
Private Hire Vehicle Licence. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 The Sub-Committee will be requested to determine the referral as appropriate. 
 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

Licensed vehicles are responsible for transporting passengers. It is important for the 
protection of the public that only suitable vehicles that are fit for purpose are 
licensed.  
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

3.4 None 
 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 The relevant Council Priority is  

 
“The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool” 

 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 

The Sub-Committee is asked to determine whether or not the licence holder is a fit 
and proper person to hold a Private Hire Vehicle Licence, in respect of the following 
case: 
 
M.T.K. (Existing) 
 
Matters causing concern and any supporting documents are attached at Appendix 
4(a) 
  

5.3 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? Yes 
 
5.4 List of Appendices: 

 
 

 Appendix 4(a) Details of case (not for publication)  
 
6.0 Legal considerations: 

 
6.1 
 
 
6.2 

The Sub-Committee must be satisfied that the conditions are no longer reasonably 
necessary. 
 
There is the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court. 

 
7.0 Human Resources considerations: 

 
7.1 None 
 
8.0 Equalities considerations: 

 
8.1 None 
 
9.0 Financial considerations: 

 
9.1 None 
 
10.0 Risk management considerations: 

 
10.1 None 
 
11.0 Ethical considerations: 

 
11.1 None 
 

Page 40



12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 None 
 
13.0 Background papers 

 
13.1 
 

None 

 
  

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: PUBLIC PROTECTION SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Relevant Officer: Lee Petrak, Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Date of Meeting  
 

25 February 2020 

 

POLICY ON THE USE OF THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF TAXI LICENCE 
REVOCATIONS AND REFUSALS (NR3)  
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider proposed Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence 
Revocations and Refusals for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 
 

To consider the policy outlined in Appendix 5(a) and subject to any amendments, 
authorise a four week period of consultation with the trade. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1a 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The ‘National Register of Refusals and Revocations’ (NR3) contains information 
relating to any refusal to grant, or revocation of, a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence. This information is important in the context of a subsequent 
application to another authority for a drivers’ licence by a person who has had their 
licence refused or revoked in the past. Authorities wishing to use this register are 
required to have a policy in place indicating how the register will be used and how 
the data obtained will be handled. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 (1) Make the policy subject to amendments before it’s approval 
 

(2) The Sub-Committee could determine that there is no requirement for a 
policy, however this would be contrary to the advice given in guidance 
provided by the Local Government Agency on adopting the NR3 register. 

 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 5



4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 
across Blackpool” 

 
5.0 Background Information 

 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 

Licensing Authorities are required to satisfy themselves that those holding Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle driver licences are ‘fit and proper’ to do so. This is 
done firstly during the determination of an application for a licence, and then at any 
time during the currency of a licence. For example when evidence is obtained that 
suggests that a licensed individual is not a fit and proper person the licensing 
authority is entitled to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a licence. 
 
The process of assessing whether an applicant or licensee is ‘fit and proper’ may vary 
between authorities but there is widespread consensus on the need to increase 
consistency and set national minimum standards for the fit and proper test at a 
suitably high level. This would help prevent individuals who have had a licence 
revoked by one authority from simply going to another area and securing a licence - 
assuming the second authority was aware of the earlier revocation. At the moment, 
if drivers do not disclose information about a previous revocation or refusal of a 
licence, there is often no way for a licensing authority to find this information out. 
This means that vital intelligence about an applicant’s past behaviour is being missed 
and an individual might be able to get a new licence in another area, despite having 
their licence revoked elsewhere. High profile instances of this happening have 
undermined public confidence in the safety of Hackney Carriages And Private Hire 
Vehicles, and left licensing authorities open to criticism for something that is 
currently very difficult for them to control. 
 
In response to this issue, the Local Government Association (LGA) has commissioned 
the development of a national register of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle 
Driver Licence refusals and revocations, the ‘National Register of Refusals and 
Revocations’ or NR3. The new register will allow licensing authorities to record 
details of where a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle Drivers’ Licence has been 
refused or revoked, and allow licensing authorities to check new applicants against 
the register. This should help to prevent people found to be not fit and proper in one 
area from securing a licence somewhere else through deception and non-disclosure. 
For the avoidance of doubt, NR3 does not extend to vehicle or operator licensing 
decisions. 
 
Authorities wishing to use the register are required to have in place a policy 
indicating how the register will be used and how the data will be handled. A draft 
policy has been developed (Appendix 5a). The draft policy, following a period of 
consultation, must be approved by the Executive. This will probably be by Cabinet 
Member or published Officer Decision. 
 

Page 60



 
 
5.5 

 
 
Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
 

                   No 
   
5.6 List of Appendices: 

 
 

 Appendix 5(a) Proposed Policy on the use of the National Register of 
Taxi Licence Revocations and Refusals (NR3). 

 

 
6.0 Legal considerations: 

 
6.1 None 
 
7.0 Human Resources considerations: 

 
7.1 None 
 
8.0 Equalities considerations: 

 
8.1 None 
 
9.0 Financial considerations: 

 
9.1 None 
 
10.0 Risk management considerations: 

 
10.1 None 
 
11.0 Ethical considerations: 

 
11.1 None 
 
12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 

 
12.1 None 
 
13.0 Background papers: 

 
13.1 None 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 51

Policy on the use of the National 
Register of Taxi Licence 
Revocation & Refusals (NR3)

Page 63

chris.williams
Text Box
      Appendix 5(a)



Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence Revocation 
& Refusals (NR3)

Page 2 of 8

Contents 

1. Introduction 03 

2. Scope 03 

3. Overarching principles 04 

4. Adding Details of a refusal or revocation 04 

5. Checking the NR3 register as part of the application and renewal process 05

6. Responding to a request made for further information regarding an entry on NR3 06

7. Using any information obtained as a result of a request to another authority 08

Appendix A  - Information Disclosure Form

Page 64



Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence Revocation 
& Refusals (NR3)

Page 3 of 8

1. Introduction

The Local Government Association has commissioned the development of a national register of hackney

carriage and private hire vehicle driver licence refusals and revocations, the ‘National Register of

Refusals and Revocations’ or NR3. The NR3 contains information relating to any refusal to grant, or

revocation of, a taxi or private hire driver’s licence. This information is important in the context of a

subsequent application to another authority for a drivers’ licence by a person who has had their licence

refused or revoked in the past. Blackpool Council has signed up to use NR3. This means that when an

application for a taxi drivers’ licence is refused, or when an existing taxi or private hire driver’s licence is

revoked, that information will be placed upon the register.

2. Scope
2.1 This policy covers how Blackpool Council will use NR3 and how the Council will comply with data

protection requirements.

2.2 In this policy, the ‘first authority’ refers to a licensing authority which made a specific entry onto the 

National Register of Refusals and Revocations; the ‘second authority’ refers to a licensing authority 

which is seeking more detailed information about the entry. 

Page 65



Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence 
Revocation & Refusals (NR3)

Page 4 of 8

3. Overarching Principles

4

3.1 When an application for a new drivers’ licence, or renewal of an existing drivers’ licence is 

received, Blackpool Council will search the NR3. The search will only be made by an officer who has 

been trained in the use of the NR3 and who is acting in accordance with this policy. If details are 

found that appear to relate to the applicant, a request will be made to the authority that entered that 

information for further details.

3.2 Any information that is received from any other authority in relation to an application will only be 

used in relation to that application, and the determination of it, and will not be used for any other 

purpose. Any such data that is received (referred to below as “relevant data”) will only be kept for as 

long as is necessary in relation to the final determination of that application. This will include the 

period of time processing that application, making a decision, notifying the applicant of the outcome 

of that decision, and any appeal processes. Subject to paragraph 3.3 below, relevant data will be kept 

for a period of no more than 35 days from the date of the service of the written notification of the 

determination of the application.

3.3 In the event of an appeal in respect of the determination of an application being made to the 

Courts within the requisite period, the relevant data will be retained for 35 days following the final 

disposal of all appeal proceedings

3.4 The data will be held securely in accordance with Blackpool Council’s general policy on the secure 

retention of personal data. At the end of the retention period, the data will be erased and/or 

destroyed in accordance with Blackpool Council’s Data Protection policy at: https://

www.blackpool.gov.uk/Your-Council/Transparency-and-open-data/Documents/Blackpool-Council-

Data-Protection-Act-Policy.pdf

Adding Details of a refusal or revocation
4.1 NR3 is a mechanism for licensing authorities to share details of individuals who have had a 
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle driver’s licence revoked, or an application for one refused. 
This is necessary for the performance of a task carried out in the public interest or in the exercise of 
official authority vested in the licensing authority – Blackpool Council – that is, assessing whether an 
individual is a fit and proper person to hold a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle driver’s licence.

Page 66



Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence Revocation 
& Refusals (NR3)

Page 5 of 8

5.0 Checking the NR3 register as part of the application and renewal process
5.1 When an application is made to Blackpool Council for the grant of a new, or renewal of, a taxi    
driver’s licence, Blackpool Council will carry out a search on the NR3 register.

5.2 Blackpool Council will then retain a clear written record of every search that is made of the 
register. This will detail:

• the date of the search;
• the name or names searched;
• the reason for the search (new application or renewal);
• the results of the search; and
• the use made of the results of the search (this information will be entered to the register at a

later date).

5.3 This record will not be combined with any other records (i.e. combined with a register of 
licences granted) and will be retained for the retention period of 25 years.

5.4 If Blackpool Council discovers any match (i.e. there is an entry in the register for the same name 
and identifying details) a request will be made to the authority that entered those details (the first 
authority) for further information about that entry. That request will also include details of 
Blackpool Council’s data protection policy in relation to the use of any data that is obtained as a 
result of this process.

5.5 This request will be made in writing in accordance with the form at Appendix 1 of this policy. It 
will be posted or emailed to the contact address of the authority that entered those details (the 
first authority) which will be detailed in the register.

4.2 Where an application for a licence is refused, or an existing licence is revoked, Blackpool Council 
will record this decision on NR3. The information recorded on NR3 will be limited to an individual’s:

• name;
• date of birth;
• address and contact details;
• national insurance details;
• driving licence number;
• decision taken;
• date of decision; and
• date decision effective.

4.3 Data is held on the NR3 register for a period of 25 years, in line with the national NR3 guidance.

Page 67



Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence Revocation 
& Refusals (NR3)

6.0   Responding to a request made for further information regarding an entry on
NR3

6.1 When Blackpool Council receives a request for further information from another authority a clear 
written record will be made of the request having been received. This record will not be combined with 
any other records (i.e. combined with a register of licences granted) and will be retained for the 
retention period of 25 years.

6.2 Blackpool Council will then determine how to respond to the request. The Council will not simply 
provide information as an automatic response to every request.

6.3 Blackpool Council will conduct a Data Protection Impact Assessment. This will consider how the 
other authority (the second authority) will use the data, how it will store that data to prevent 
unauthorised disclosure, the retention period for that data, and the mechanism for erasure or 
destruction of the data at the end of that period. It is expected that if the second authority has adopted 
a policy similar to this, that should be a reasonably straightforward process.

6.4 If Blackpool Council is satisfied that the other authority’s (the 2nd authority) data protection 
procedures are satisfactory, consideration will then be given as to what information will be disclosed. 
This will be determined by an officer who has been trained to discharge this function. Any disclosure 
must be considered and proportionate, taking into account the data subject’s rights and the position 
and responsibilities of a taxi driver. Data is held on the NR3 register for a period of 25 years, but 
Blackpool Council  will not disclose information relating to every entry. Each application will be 
considered on its own merits.

6.5 Blackpool Council will disclose information relating to a revocation or refusal to grant a driver’s 
licence in accordance with the timescales contained within Blackpool Council’s Data Protection policy. 
Where the reason for refusal to grant or revocation relates to a conviction which is within the 
timescales determined in the council’s Suitability and Convictions Policy, the information will be 
disclosed. Where the reason for refusal to grant or revocation relates to a conviction which is outside 
the timescales determined in the Suitability and Convictions Policy, the information will not usually be 
disclosed. However, in every case, consideration will be given to the full circumstances of the decision, 
and there may be occasions where information is provided other than in accordance with this policy.

6.6 Any information about convictions will be shared in accordance with this policy under schedule 1, 
part 2, paragraphs 11 and 12 of the Data Protection Act (DPA) 2018; that is:

Page 6 of 8
Page 68



Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence Revocation 
& Refusals (NR3)

Page 7 of 8

“Protecting the public against dishonesty etc.
11 (1) This condition is met if the processing—

(a) is necessary for the exercise of a protective function,
(b) must be carried out without the consent of the data subject so as not to prejudice the exercise

of that function, and
(c) is necessary for reasons of substantial public interest.

(2) In this paragraph, “protective function” means a function which is intended to protect members
of the public against—

(a) dishonesty, malpractice or other seriously improper conduct,
(b) unfitness or incompetence,
(c) mismanagement in the administration of a body or association, or
(d) failures in services provided by a body or association.

Regulatory requirements relating to unlawful acts and dishonesty etc.
12 (1) This condition is met if—

(a) the processing is necessary for the purposes of complying with, or assisting other persons to
comply with, a regulatory requirement which involves a person taking steps to establish whether another 
person has—

(i) committed an unlawful act, or
(ii) been involved in dishonesty, malpractice or other seriously improper conduct,
(b) in the circumstances, the controller cannot reasonably be expected to obtain the consent of the

data subject to the processing, and 
(c) the processing is necessary for reasons of substantial public interest.

(2) In this paragraph—
“act” includes a failure to act;
“regulatory requirement” means—
(a) a requirement imposed by legislation or by a person in exercise of a function conferred by

legislation, or
(b) a requirement forming part of generally accepted principles of good practice relating to a type

of body or an activity.”

6.7 The officer will record what action was taken and why Blackpool Council will make and then retain a 
clear written record of every decision that is made as a result of a request from another authority. This will 
detail:

• the date the request was received;
• how the data protection impact assessment was conducted and its conclusions;
• the name or names searched;
• whether any information was provided;
• if information was provided, why it was provided (and details of any further advice obtained before

the decision was made);

Page 69



Policy on the use of the National Register of Taxi Licence Revocation 
& Refusals (NR3)

Page 8 of 8

7.0 Using any information obtained as a result of a request to another 
authority

• if information was not provided, why it was not provided (and details of any further advice obtained
before the decision was made); and

• how and when the decision (and any information) was communicated to the requesting authority.

This record will not be combined with any other records and will be retained for the retention period of 25 
years

7.1 When Blackpool Council receives information as a result of a request that has been made to another 
authority, it will take that information into account when determining the application for the grant or 
renewal of a taxi drivers’ licence. This will be in accordance with the usual process for determining 
applications.

7.2 Blackpool Council will make and then retain a clear written record of the use that is made of the 
results of the search (this information will be added to the register detailed above). Information that is 
received may warrant significant weight being attached to it, but it will not be the sole basis for any 
decision that Blackpool Council will make in relation to the application

Page 70



Appendix 1 - Information Disclosure Form 

This form is submitted following a search of the National Register of Refusals and Revocations 
(NR3). 

This information is requested under schedule 1, part 2, paragraphs 11&12 of the Data Protection 
Act (DPA) 2018. 

(For completion by requestor authority) 

Name of licensing authority requesting 
information 

Requestor authority reference number 

Name of licensing authority from which 
information is sought 

Name of individual in respect of whom the 
request is made 

Decision in respect of which the request is 
made 

Other Details for this record 

Address 

Driving licence number 

NI Number 

Reference number 

Page 71



Declaration by requesting authority: 

The authority hereby confirms that this information is being sought in connection with the 
exercising of its statutory function to ensure that holders of taxi / PHV licences are fit and proper 
persons, and that the processing of this data is therefore necessary in the performance of a task 
carried out in the public interest. 

The information provided below will only be processed, used and saved by the authority in 
connection with this particular application and in accordance with all relevant data and privacy 
requirements, as previously advised by the authority to applicants for and existing holders of taxi 
and PHV licences, and will be retained in accordance with the Authority’s retention policy relating 
to the provision of such information. 

To enable the authority to conduct a data protection impact assessment, details of this 
authority’s policy in relation to the use of information obtained as a result of this request is 
attached to this document. 

Signed 

Print Name 

Position 

Date 

Further information to support the decision recorded on NR3 in respect of the above named 
individual 

Page 72



Declaration by providing authority 

The authority hereby confirms that it has conducted a data protection impact assessment. 

It also confirms that the information above is accurate, and has been provided after thorough 
consideration by the authority as to the proportionality and lawfulness of making this disclosure. 
The information reflects the basis on which the decision recorded in the National Register of 
Refusals and Revocations was made. In the event that the authority becomes aware that this 
information is no longer accurate, we will advise the above named authority accordingly. 

The authority also confirms that, as part of the basis for securing, retaining or applying for a taxi 
/ PHV licence, the above named individual has been made aware of to the fact that this 
information will be shared, in accordance with all relevant data and privacy requirements 

Name 

Print Name 

Position 

Date 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 21 JANUARY 2020
	3 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE DRIVER LICENCES
	4 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE
	5 POLICY ON THE USE OF THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF TAXI LICENCE REVOCATIONS AND REFUSALS (NR3)
	APP 5a Blackpool Council NR3 Policy Draft (V3)
	Blackpool Council NR3 Policy Draft (V2)
	NR3 Request for Info 0001





